THE MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF THE MAYOR AND ALDERPERSONS
OF THE CITY OF WATERTOWN, WILSON COUNTY, TN

JUNE 29, 2023

The Board of Mayor and Alderpersons of the City of Watertown, Wilson County, TN met in regular
session on June 29, 2023 at 6:00 P.M. at the Watertown Community Center.

A public hearing was held at 5:45 P.M. prior to the regular meeting concerning the budget and tax rate
for fiscal year 2023-2024. Mayor Jennings stated a public hearing is required and budget was presented
to council on June 15" for first reading. This budget is the largest budget we have ever had and includes
no water/sewer or tax increase and includes a raise for all employees.

Mayor Jennings asked if there are any comments on the budget. John Jewell asked what the total on the
budget was. Mayor Jennings stated almost two million dollars.

Mayor Jennings closed the Public Hearing and the regular meeting will start at 6:00 P.M.

Alderpersons Present: Larry Byrd, Caleb Barrett, Kyle Stacey, Laura Cromer, Steve Casey, Howell Roberts
and Mayor Mike Jennings.

Mayor Jennings called the regular meeting to order and led with prayer.

Motion made by Caleb Barrett and proper second by Howell Roberts to approve the May 16, 2023
minutes. Motion carried unanimously.

PUBLIC

Officer Donna Gray was present to speak on concerns on the reason why officers are leaving the police
department. Money is not always a factor since there are problems within the police department. Chief
Laney treats everyone differently and shows favoritism, double standards concerning rules only apply
when it’s convenient. There was an incident when the new vehicles were in parking lot not being used
and she had to patrol in a unsafe vehicle, only certain officers can drive the new vehicles. Another
incident was she was on a call with 17 illegal people and could not get in touch with the Chief and when
she did was advised to let them go with a verbal warning after being told in a mandatory meeting to do
something differently. These are safety issues that need to be taken care of to protect the citizens and
community.

Donna Gray had requested public records on June 3, 2023 from City Hall and received an email on

June 7, 2023 to inform her that by July 3, 2023 that she would receive a reason for either denial or
receive the public records. Donna questioned why would public requests take this long to receive and
she was told nothing. Donna stated the law states anyone can come in and look at records without
making a request during regular business hours as long as no copies are made, she wanted to know
what she was in violation of. Mayor jennings stated that Donna would have the records on July 3, 2023
as she was previously told. Donna wanted to know why she hasn’t been able to receive and since she
has not received she was going to talk to the Board of Professional Responsibility. Mayor Jennings stated
he was not going to keep being threatened by this and Donna needed to leave the podium.



Mayor Jennings explained that he normally doesn’t react like this but Donna Gray has been threatening
him numerous times to take him to the Board of Professional Responsibility for his actions as mayor.
Public servants has a right to be criticized but also to defend themselves against slandering and this is
slandering his reputation and law license. Mayor Jennings stated he is acting as mayor not as an
attorney.

Jim Amero was present concerning the sidewalk lights and lights around the square that need to be
repaired and bulbs need to be replaced before the Jazz Festival on July 15%. Jim Amero stated the lamp
post in front of Jimbo’s had been ran over and knocked down. Laura Cromer stated it's very dark in that
area. Tim Dowd stated some lights are not working at all and need to look at the poles and figure out if
the electricity is coming from private owned businesses. Mayor Jennings stated will discuss with the
Chamber to see what needs to be done. Steve Casey made recommendation of getting a temporary light
to put on the corner to light up that end of Main Street since we will not be able to resolve problem
before Jazz Festival. Steve Casey made a motion and proper second by Laura Cromer to rent some type
of generator with light fixture only for the lazz Festival for safety reasons to be placed in the area of
Jimbo's and the Mexican Restaurant. Mayor Jennings and Steve Casey discussed that a lot of the food
trucks & activities were going to be located on Main Street more to the west side of square this year.
Mayor Jennings stated this year most of the Jazz Festival will be held on the city property on the west
side of Depot Street. Howell Roberts suggested waiting until after the Jazz Festival to fix correctly.

Steve Casey withdrew his motion due to not being a safety issue for Jazz Festival. Mayor Jennings stated
he would come back next meeting with recommendations after talking with Historic Watertown and the
Chamber.

Jim Amero ask if the city employees could pressure wash the sidewalks and paint the alleyway stripes
yellow like they have in the past. Jim Amero stated that the parking in the opposite direction is working
well but still having people speeding and doing U turns in front of his house on East Main Street.

Keith Harrison was present to discuss the Urban Growth Boundary. Keith appreciated the opportunity to
speak, he doesn'’t live inside the city limits of Watertown but Watertown is his home and proud of it.

His concerns were the proposal had caused confusion and mis-communication and has created some
concern. They have been discussing with the community about the process and study that goes into the
growth boundaries. It has gone thru the proper process and now going back to the county urban growth
planning committee. They attended the meeting held in January to learn more about the growth plan
and could make comments for considerations at that time.

Keith asked if a study had been completed prior to the Urban Growth Plan and respectfully asks for the
council to reconsider the proposal and leave as is for now. The people on the outskirts of Watertown
want to see Watertown prosper and would like to have input so everyone can work together to see this
community continue to be the best place to live in Wilson County.

Mayor Jennings stated when the Urban Growth Boundary started he took lead to expand the boundary
growth area but doesn’t want to see Watertown to grow as fast as the surrounding cities. We are having
more requests for bigger things to come that will expand our boundaries. Mayor Jennings stated he
didn’t want the city to be 20 years from now and we didn’t take the steps to try to deal with growth.
Mayor Jennings stated since the proposal approval he has talked with several people that don’t agree
with the proposal and understands their concerns. Mayor Jennings stated he is willing to step back and
keep the Urban Growth Boundary where it was previously.



OLD BUSINESS

Mayor Jennings stated the budget needs to be passed on second and final reading. There is no
water/sewer increase and hopefully will be able to find more money in the budget over the next few
months that can go to the employees if possible. Motion made by Howell Roberts and proper second by
Laura Cromer to approve the 2023-2024 budget on second and final reading. Motion carried
unanimously.

Motion made by Howell Roberts and proper second by Laura Cromer to approve on second and final
reading the tax rate of $0.6027 per $100.00 assessed value. Motion carried unanimously.

Mayor Jennings stated the council needs to revisit the Tent Revival that was approved in April. They
have not provided the updated proof of insurance that was requested and some comments made
recently around town did not reflect correctly on what happened. Motion made by Steve Casey and
proper second by Laura Cromer to not allow the Tent Revival to be held here the end of July due to
failure to timely comply with the requested insurance certificate. Motion carried unanimously.

Mayor Jennings stated the sewer project had been approved with the south side easement but the
north side easement is still pending that belongs to the Hall family. Last year it was approved to pay
$16000.00 for the easement which was subject to the easement being moved closer to the creek which
required state approval and that has been obtained. The Hall family is now requesting $24000.00 for
the easement.

Mayor Jennings does not recommend the additional cost, the current easement to the Wilson County
Water Authority was granted by a previous landowner at no cost. If the Hall’s decide to not take the
previous offer of $16000.00 the next option would be condemnation.

Motion made by Larry Byrd and proper second by Steve Casey to stay with the original agreement made
last June to pay $16000.00. Motion carried unanimously.

Mayor Jennings stated we need to have a cybersecurity policy in place by July 1, 2023 to be in
compliance with the State. We have prepared a policy that was recommended by Mr. Poole, and will get
with Aaron Wilson our IT guy to help us with anything else that needs to be completed. Mayor Jennings
recommended to adopt policy and we can amend policy later if needed.

Motion made by Laura Cromer and proper second by Howell Roberts to adopt the cybersecurity policy.
Motion carried unanimously.

NEW BUSINESS
Mayor Jennings stated the budget report for 2022-2023 is in good shape.

Mayor Jennings stated the TML Annual Conference for municipal officials will be in Nashville July 22-25
the fee is $450.00. Mayor Jennings would like to attend and welcomes any of the council members to
attend. Motion made by Howell Roberts and proper second by Steve Casey to approve Mayor Jennings
to attend the TML conference in July. Motion carried unanimously.

Mayor Jennings stated the 4™ of July Parade will be held at 3:00 P.M. and fireworks will be that night at
9:00 or after. The Chamber and City splits the cost for the firework show. The City appreciates the
Chamber.

The next council meeting will be July 18, 2023 at 6:00 P.M.



Laura Cromer stated she would still like to see us keep up with the growth if we can deny or approve
what is being built in the future so we would be able to receive the benefits. Steve Casey stated that he
wants everyone to understand that the Urban Growth boundary is not the city limits. The city cannot by
law annex anything the property owner doesn’t ask the city to annex but by expanding the urban
growth that would give the city more control if development ever occurs.

Motion made by Laura Cromer and proper second by Caleb Barrett to retract the Urban Growth
Boundary Plan to where it was originally. Motion carries 5-2.

Tim Dowd stated they are working on moving the water line at the gazebo and will determine which
lights aren’t working after the bulbs have been changed out and bring recommendations back to
council.

Lee Bond was present concerning building townhomes located at 7411 Sparta Pike. There will be 34
units with 2 entrances. This property is already inside the city limits and planning commission had met
few weeks ago and recommends to change zoning from R-1 to R-M2. Lee discussed several options on
water & sewer hookups. Howell Roberts made a motion and proper second by Laura Cromer to rezone
property located at 7411 Sparta Pike from R-1 to R-M2 on first reading. Motion carried unanimously.

Lee Bond asked what the requirements were to be elected on the city council, he would like to be part
of the council and planning. Mayor Jennings stated that you have to be a resident of the City of
Watertown. If you own a business you can vote in the city elections but cannot run for council.

Laura Cromer suggested the city look into collecting impact fees.

FIRE REPORT

Blake Haun presented the fire report with a total of 44 calls. The council had no questions or comments.
Blake stated he has been in discussion with WEMA about changing county medical response to meet a
certain criteria for call types. This would mirror their own policy for sending a fire crew with the
ambulance anywhere else in the county. This would have been a reduction of 8 medical calls in the
county this month. These discussions only pertain to medical calls in the county. The fire department
will still respond to all medical calls in the city. This would only reduce calls the fire department is
dispatched to in the county.

SEWER REPORT
Dale Smith presented the sewer report. Dale stated the refrigeration unit for the influent sampler has
stopped working at the sewer plant and has contacted Randy’s Heat & Air to get repaired.

POLICE REPORT

Chief Bill Laney presented the police report. Bill stated all cars were in service now. The police have had
a few new hires. Officer Medina was present and introduced himself to the council.

Motion made by Howell Roberts and proper second by Steve Casey to approve to hire Officer Fidencio
Medina as a full time officer. Motion carried unanimously.

The police department would like to keep the Escape thru the Jazz Festival before giving to the street
department. Howell Roberts suggested keeping the Escape that was wrecked few months ago for spare
parts.



The Jazz Festival will be July 15,

COUNCIL MEMBERS

Howell Roberts stated he had several people asking why the City Hall is closed. Mayor Jennings stated
after being closed for Covid we stayed closed for safety purposes. Laura Cromer suggested to get a
buzzer for outside and after discussion a drive thru window may be an option for the future.

Steve Casey asked if there were any updates on the dangerous dog breeds and golf cart ordinances.

Steve stated we need to look into charging some type of fees for food trucks. Some options could be a
one day vendor pass or vendor permits for food trucks that are here on a regular basis. Mayor Jennings
stated we can look at preparing an ordinance.

Steve stated that Blue Cross Blue Shield has a grant that has opened up for park development for youth
and adult activities. We are in need of more fields. Steve would like permission to pursue this grant with
Steven Smartt. Mayor Jennings stated anytime we have an opportunity for grants to pursue them that

Mr. Smartt is great in pursuing grants to reach out and give him an idea of what we are looking for at the
park.

Laura Cromer stated she was very disappointed with the parents during ball season, that the last game
held was horrible. The league is free and is great for our community and not sure what the solution is.
Jeff Tunks did a great job and police can’t be everywhere. Howell stated that using kids for refs is the
problem that they don’t have any authority. Mayor Jennings stated that this provided part time jobs for
the kids. Kyle asked could we use SRO officers. Mayor Jennings stated he would talk with Jeff to see
what his thoughts are. Howell suggested using off duty police officers or have police extra patrol. After
discussion Mayor Jennings stated he will look at to see what our best option is.

Laura stated she had been asked what we are doing with the Industrial Park land. Mayor Jennings stated

that there is a few acres that the city still owns and could be bought if it brings industries and jobs to
town.

Kyle Stacey asked what the sport betting tax we receive is from? Mayor Jennings stated we receive this
from gambling fees that the State legalized. This is state shared revenue.

Caleb Barrett-none

Larry Byrd stated this would be his last meeting and it has been a pleasure serving on the council. Mayor
Jennings stated on behalf of him and the citizens of Watertown we appreciate everything that he has

done. It's not always easy being a public servant but he did well and has brought great things to the
table and it's been much appreciated.

Motion made by Laura Cromer and proper second by Howell Roberts to adjourn meeting.
Motion carried unanimously.

- (
S\ oo I3—o *\\Dsu‘::;«.
April L\ambergbﬁf'City Recorder







